
































































































































Page 1 of 8                                                                                         Minutes of Board of Teton County Commissioners:  September 14, 2015 

Board of Teton County Commissioners 
MINUTES: September  14, 2015 

Commissioners’ Meeting Room, 150 Courthouse Drive, Driggs, Idaho
 

9:00 AM 
 

Meeting Called to Order - Bill Leake, Chair (Amendments to Agenda) 
9:00 AM PUBLIC HEARING - City of Victor de-annexation  
9:30 AM Open Mic (proceed to next agenda items if no speakers)  

 DEPARTMENT BUSINESS  

 PLANNING & BUILDING - Jason Boal, Planning Administrator  

 1. Teton Valley Lodge Site, Division 1,  Insignificant Plat Amendment 

 2. Land Use Code Process 

 3. Housing Authority Meeting primer 

 4. Planning and Zoning Commission Appointment  

 5. Natural Resource Specialist  

 PUBLIC WORKS - Darryl Johnson  

 1.       Solid Waste - Saul Varela, Supervisor  

 a.       Solid Waste Update – Saul Verela 

 b.      Landfill Cap Update 

 c.       Proposed Ordinance RE :Solid Waste & Recycling Collection, etc.  

 2.       Road & Bridge - Clay Smith, Supervisor  

 3.       Engineering  

 a.       E5000S Reconstruction Update 

 b.      W6000S Design Update 

 c.       Badger Creek Inspections 

 CLERK  

 1. Nov. 3 Election - Number of Ballots to Order  

 2. Clerk's FY 2016 Budget Memo #7  

 3. Certification of 2015 levies (for FY 2016)  

 ADMINISTRATIVE BUSINESS (will be dealt with as time permits) 

 1. Approve available minutes  

 2.  Other Business  

 
a. Beer & Wine licenses         
b. Certificates of Residency  

 c. PTO Extension requests 

 d. Search and Rescue disposal of personal property 

 e. Airport Noise 

 3. Committee Reports  

 4. Priorities Check-up 

 5. Claims  
12:00 PM ELECTED OFFICIAL & DEPARTMENT HEAD MEETING  
2:15 PM PUBLIC HEARING FOR FY 2016 Fees & Resolution 2015-0914 adopting fee schedule  
2:30 PM American Insurance - employee insurance renewals 
3:30 PM Fair Board - Katie Salsbury  

 
1. Report on 2015 Fair       
2. Fairgrounds maintenance  

 3. Modifications to FY 2015 and FY 2016 Fair/Fairgrounds Budget  

 4. Hiring new Fair Ground Administrator  
 

 



Page 2 of 8                                                                                         Minutes of Board of Teton County Commissioners:  September 14, 2015 

COMMISSIONERS PRESENT:  Bill Leake, Cindy Riegel, Kelly Park  
 
OTHER ELECTED OFFICIALS PRESENT:  Clerk Mary Lou Hansen, Prosecutor Kathy Spitzer  
 
Chairman Leake called the meeting to order at 9:02 am and led the Pledge of Allegiance.   
 
9:03 am PUBLIC HEARING: Zoning for parcels de-annexed by City of Victor   
Planning Administrator Jason Boal said the City of Victor has de-annexed three parcels located on 1000West 
just south of 7000 South and the county needs to assign zoning to those properties because they now fall within 
the county’s jurisdiction.  (The county has no role in a city’s decision to annex or de-annex.) Mr. Boal said the 
properties are surrounded by A-2.5 zoning. The Planning & Zoning Commission has held a public hearing and 
has recommended that the properties be zoned A-2.5 (Attachment #1).  
 
Chairman Leake opened the hearing for public comments. There was no one present wishing to testify so the 
public comment period was closed.  
 
 MOTION.

 

 Having found that the proposed zone change is consistent with the Teton County Comprehensive 
Plan, Teton County Zoning Ordinances and the Victor Area of Impact Agreement, and having found that a 
public hearing was properly noticed and conducted according to Idaho State Statute, Commissioner Park made a 
motion to approve the proposed amendment that would assign the A-2.5 zoning district to the newly de-annexed 
parcels and add them to the Victor Area of Impact as presented in the application materials. Motion seconded by 
Commissioner Riegel and carried unanimously.  

OPEN MIC  
Shawn Hill of VARD spoke about the land use code update process.  
 
Dave Hudascko of RAD Curbside said his company is currently on schedule with transition plans to become the 
county’s exclusive solid waste collection & hauling contractor November 1.  
 
PLANNING & BUILDING   
TETON VALLEY LODGE SITE, DIVISION 1, INSIGNIFICANT PLAT AMENDMENT. Mr. Boal said 
the original plat for this development specified “common sewer areas.”  However, the current location of the 
septic field for the Peters home has no additional capacity to service an addition onto their home. In order to 
provide the needed capacity without running a new line across two other lots, the Peters have worked with 
Eastern Idaho Public Health to locate a new leachfield on their own lot. Mr. Boal said the county is typically not 
involved in the location or size of septic tanks and leachfields and is only involved with this application because 
the sewer areas were identified on the plat. (Attachment #2)  
 
 MOTION.

 

 Commissioner Park made a motion to approve the Insignificant Plat Amendment to the Teton 
Valley Lodge Sites (Division 1) as requested by Marjorie Peters and recommended by staff. Motion second by 
Commissioner Riegel and carried unanimously.  

LAND USE CODE REVISION. Mr. Boal said staff is continuing to update the draft code and is looking to 
hire a graphics consultant. He had previously asked the Board to provide answers to four specific questions 
regarding the update process but has received responses only from Commissioner Riegel (Attachment #3).  
 
Chairman Leake provided his answers as follows: (1) He would like the Board to be involved, at a minimum, 
however the statute requires; (2) He agrees with Commissioner Riegel’s comments about public outreach and 
wants to be certain that the public has a complete opportunity to understand the new ordinances long before the 
final public hearing; (3) He agrees with the specifics as outlined by Commissioner Riegel; (4) He will judge the 
end product according to whether or not it conflicts with the Comp Plan, although there is a lot of subjectivity 
involved in that decision.  
 



Page 3 of 8                                                                                         Minutes of Board of Teton County Commissioners:  September 14, 2015 

Mr. Boal said he will provide a more detailed timeline. Commissioner Leake said he also plans to create a 
detailed timeline.  
 
Commissioner Riegel said she has discussed the third party review with Mr. Boal and understands that the 
planning staff wants to receive the University of Idaho analysis in order to incorporate their suggestions into the 
public review draft. Mr. Boal said the U of I staff has worked with the county previously and is charging nothing 
for their review. He said everyone understands that the U of I review is not a full blown review of the entire 
code because the entire code is not yet complete and that there may be a need for additional Comp Plan analysis 
after the public review draft is complete.  
 
HOUSING AUTHORITY. Mr. Boal said the findings of the 2014 housing survey were remarkably similar to 
the 2006 survey and he will briefly outline those findings at the Sept. 16 Affordable Housing meeting. He said 
the purpose of that meeting is to discuss the possible re-activation of the Housing Authority Commission, not to 
discuss how to solve the housing crisis.  
 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION APPOINTMENTS. Prosecutor Spitzer said state law requires PZC 
appointments to be a minimum 3-year term and that all of the county’s PZC terms expire Sept. 30. This means 
the Board’s August 24 motion to appoint Dave Hensel and Sara Johnston to serve until the Land Use 
Development code is complete was not valid; they must be appointed for a three year term. They could certainly 
resign before that new 3-year term is up. Furthermore, said Prosecutor Spitzer, the 3-year terms for seats held by 
David Breckenridge and Marlene Robson, who were appointed Sept. 9, 2013 in order to expand the PZC to a 
nine-member board, are also expiring Sept. 30.  
 
 MOTION.

 

 Chairman Leake made a motion to appoint Dave Hensel and Sarah Johnston for new 3-year terms 
on the Planning & Zoning Commission. Motion seconded by Commissioner Riegel and carried, with 
Commissioner Park opposed.  

Commissioner Park said he prefers returning to a 7-member PZC and believes the two newest members, Mr. 
Breckenridge and Ms. Robson, should be re-appointed. The Board will discuss those two seats, and the 7-
member/9-member PZC question on September 25. 
 
NATURAL RESOURCE SPECIALIST. Commissioner Riegel said the University of Idaho prefers that the 
local Extension Agent hired to replace former agent Ben Eborn not work as the county’s Weed Supervisor. The 
new agent will definitely have an important role in weed education, but not in enforcement activities. The Board 
discussed the proposed job description and agreed that it accurately reflects the desired duties, but requested the 
title be changed to “Weed Supervisor/Natural Resource Specialist.” The position will be located within the 
Planning Department, making it easier to interact with landowners who already frequent that office.  
 
 MOTION.

 

 Commissioner Riegel made a motion to approve the new re-named position, which is a pay grade 
8 with a hiring range of $20.09-21.26, with the salary split 70% Weed Fund and 30% Planning Department. 
Motion seconded by Commissioner Park and carried unanimously. (Attachment #4)  

PUBLIC WORKS  
The Board reviewed the update memo provided by Public Works Director Darryl Johnson (Attachment #5).  
 
SOLID WASTE. Supervisor Saul Varela reviewed his report (Attachment #6). Opening the transfer station to 
the public on 5 days per week rather than 3 has eliminated most of the Saturday congestion. He recommends 
planning for the future purchase of a new baler to eliminate the manual loading of cardboard and free up floor 
space within the recycling center. A new baler would cost about $90,000. The Board asked Mr. Varela to 
provide a cost/benefit analysis of a new baler. They also requested a future discussion about long-range plans for 
the transfer station property and the possible relocation of the road and bridge facility.  
 
Mr. Johnson said the landfill cap shaping and material placement methods have been modified with the 
concurrence of DEQ in order to keep the rehabilitation project on schedule for completion this year.  
 



Page 4 of 8                                                                                         Minutes of Board of Teton County Commissioners:  September 14, 2015 

He said RAD is meeting their transition plan benchmarks and asked if the county should undertake any outreach 
efforts. RAD plans to mail a flyer to every postal patron in Teton County. However, Mr. Varela said most 
questions are coming from second homeowners who would not receive that mailing. If Mr. Johnson can obtain a 
list of customers within unincorporated Teton County from Voorhees, the county will send an informational 
letter to those customers.  
 
The Board reviewed a draft ordinance recommended by Prosecutor Spitzer in order to give the county legal 
authority to enforce the exclusivity provisions of the new waste hauler contract. She said county ordinances do 
not require a public hearing unless they are related to land use. After this ordinance is approved by the Board, it 
will be published in the newspaper. The Board discussed several possible changes, including the fact that Driggs 
Mayor Hyrum Johnson has asked the county to cooperate with a future covered-load ordinance. Prosecutor 
Spitzer said this would not be the appropriate ordinance to address that problem. She will refine the proposed 
ordinance for further review and discussion by the Board.  
 
ROAD & BRIDGE. Mr. Johnson said the Rammell Mountain Road reconstruction project is complete and the 
crew is now working on the drainage and re-construction of N3000W. The paving of E5000S is complete and 
the contractor is finishing the final punch list. The Army Corps of Engineers has withdrawn the county’s 
application for W6000S but will re-open it  after the county submits a wetland mitigation plan. The Corps has  
requested annual monitoring reports as required per the permits obtained when the two Badger Creek bridges 
were re-built by the County.  
 
CLERK  
The Board had no questions about the Clerk’s FY 2016 Budget Memo #7 (Attachment #7).  
 
 MOTION.

 

 Commissioner Park made a motion to approve Clerk Hansen’s recommendation to order enough 
ballots for the November 3, 2015 election  to accommodate 50% of the number of voters registered as of Sept. 
15. Motion seconded by Commissioner Riegel and carried unanimously.  

 MOTION.

 

 Commissioner Park made a motion to certify the 2015 levies for FY 2016 as presented by the 
Clerk. Motion seconded by Commissioner Riegel and carried unanimously. (Attachment #8)   

ELECTED OFFICIAL & DEPARTMENT HEAD MEETING 
Seven elected officials and five department heads discussed issues of mutual concern. 
 
ADMINISTRATIVE BUSINESS  
 MOTION.

 

 Commissioner Park made a motion to approve the minutes of August 24 and September 9 as 
presented. Motion seconded by Commissioner Riegel and carried unanimously.  

 MOTION.

 

 Commissioner Riegel made a motion to approve the retail alcoholic beverage licenses for the 
Teton Valley Foundation Bridges to Change Movie Premiere and Friends of the Teton River Wild & Scenic 
Film Festival. Motion seconded by Commissioner Park and carried unanimously.  

 MOTION.

 

 Commissioner Park made a motion to approve Certificates of Residency for Gabriel Hernandez, 
Ariel Martinez, Jose Ortiz and Leonardo Virginia. Motion seconded by  Commissioner Riegel and carried 
unanimously.  

 MOTION.

 

 Chairman Leake made a motion to approve the trade-in of two motorcycles for one, as well as 
trading in two snow machines to help purchase two new snow machines, all as requested by Search & Rescue. 
Motion seconded by Commissioner Riegel and carried unanimously. (Attachment #9)  

PTO CARRYOVER REQUESTS. Clerk Hansen said several departments have requested approval for 
employees to carry over more than 80 hours of PTO into the new fiscal year (Attachment #10). This is allowed 
by county policy, if approved by the Board, but the same employee cannot be approved for PTO carryover in 
two consecutive years. Such approval usually includes a date by which the excess hours must be used. However, 



Page 5 of 8                                                                                         Minutes of Board of Teton County Commissioners:  September 14, 2015 

since the Sheriff is still short of patrol deputies and dispatchers, and his budgets include sufficient funds to do 
so, she suggested the Board buy out the excess PTO hours for those employees. The Board discussed the current 
policy at length, wondering how to hold supervisors accountable for managing their employees’ time off better 
and whether buying out PTO hours would be fair, or set a bad precedent. Clerk Hansen explained that previous 
Boards had included the possibility of PTO carryover in order to not penalize good employees who were unable 
to use their PTO through no fault of their own. In particular, she said, the 24/7 public safety employees were in a 
difficult position when staff shortages required significant overtime. Especially because the overtime is 
converted into comp time and county policy requires comp hours to be used before PTO hours. The Board 
decided to re-visit the PTO policy with the intent of eliminating PTO carryover provisions. This will also require 
re-visiting the policy requiring use of Comp Time hours before PTO hours.  
 
 MOTION.

 

 Chairman Leake made a motion to approve the carryover of excess PTO hours for Greg Adams, 
Tammy Sasche, Troy Jones, Heither Frei, Blake Egbert, Clint Lemieux, Rachael Heuseveldt, Alicia Parsons, 
Blake Fullmer and Mitch Golden, with the condition that the excess hours be used by the end of the pay period 
including December 31. Motion seconded by Commissioner Park and carried unanimously.  

AIRPORT NOISE. The Commissioners discussed correspondence from Niki Tischhauser complaining about 
excessive air traffic noise related to the Driggs airport (Attachment #11). Chairman Leake said he has explained 
to her that the airport is owned by the city and the county has no jurisdiction. Planning Administrator Jason Boal 
said the county’s master plan includes a “navigation easement” applying to properties within a certain proximity 
to the airport. However, this complaint comes from a resident who doesn’t live near the airport, so is more of a 
pilot issue, not an airport issue. Prosecutor Spitzer said she would need to do more research, but believes the 
county cannot regulate activities that take place in the air. Commissioner Riegel said air traffic-related noise is a 
well-document problem and she doesn’t want this complaint brushed off. She volunteered to contact the airport 
board or FAA if appropriate. Mr. Boal recommended contacting the Flight Standard District Office.  
 
COMMITTEE REPORTS. Commissioner Riegel said she provided her report during the EODH meeting 
when she explained the University of Idaho process for replacing the Extension Agent and the new Weed 
Supervisor/Natural Resource Specialist position.  
 
Chairman Leake attended the Sept. 8 meeting of the Eastern Idaho Community Action Partnership during which 
they toured facilities for senior citizens and low income families in Arco, Blackfoot and Idaho Falls. He met 
with the Mayors on Sept. 10.  
 
PRIORITIES. The updated priorities list was briefly reviewed and discussed (Attachment #12). Commissioner 
Riegel suggested adding “educational needs assessment” to the list and said the Board should support overall 
educational excellence in the county.  
 
 MOTION.

  

 Commissioner Riegel made a motion to approve the claims as presented, after receiving 
clarification regarding one Fair Board claim. Motion seconded by Commissioner Park and carried unanimously. 

General Fund ...................................... 87,928.80 
Road & Bridge .................................... 17,427.20 
Court ................................................... 39,668.85 
Court-Restitution .................................. 5,263.63 
Court-Bonds ......................................... 3,290.00 
Consolidated Elections ............................ 532.00 
Revaluation ........................................... 9,470.00 
Solid Waste ....................................... 187,638.03 
Road Levy .......................................... 59,583.75 
E911 ...................................................... 7,552.22 
Ambulance .......................................... 10,333.48 
Mosquito Abatement .......................... 20,833.33 
Waterways/Vessel ................................... 320.00 
Fairgrounds & Fair  ............................ 11,524.87 



Page 6 of 8                                                                                         Minutes of Board of Teton County Commissioners:  September 14, 2015 

Impact Fees: Circulation Facilities ... 230,000.00 
TOTAL ........................................... $691,366.16  

 
2:18 pm PUBLIC HEARING: Fees for FY 2016   
Clerk Hansen said the public notice itemized the handful of changes being proposed to the county’s fee schedule 
for FY 2016 (Attachment #13). The only actual increase is raising the public records request charge from $20 to 
$25 per hour, after the first two hours, which are free. The parcel-based Solid Waste User Fee will be a decrease 
to some property owners and a new fee for others. Chairman Park said he remembered the $10 minimum solid 
waste tipping fee was intended to be reduced to $5 after the landfill cap project was fully funded. However, no 
record of this intent could be found in the minutes. Clerk Hansen said lowering the fee would have an unknown 
impact on the solid waste budget and pointed out that a fee decrease could be approved at any time, without a 
public hearing. The Board will discuss that possibility at a future meeting.    
 
Chairman Leake said no public persons were present to discuss the fee schedule.  
 
 MOTION.

 

 Commissioner Riegel made a motion to approve Resolution 2015-0914 adopting the fee schedule 
effective October 1, 2016. Motion seconded by Chairman Leake and carried unanimously. (Attachment #14)  

EMPLOYEE INSURANCE  
Travis Argyle of American Insurance discussed the annual renewal of the county’s health insurance plan. 
Regence will not have definite rates until after September 30, but is currently estimating an overall increase of 
10%, based upon the past year of health history of insured county employees and dependants. He pointed out 
that the county’s insurance premiums had increased an average of 7.54% per year during the past few years 
compared to national average increases of 9-12% per year. The Board discussed whether it would be worthwhile 
to obtain bids from other insurance companies. They decided it would probably not make much difference in the 
long run since the county’s overall health history would be evaluated by any future insurer who would most 
likely compute similar rates.  Mr. Argyle will bring final renewal rates on October 13. The county’s annual all-
employee meeting will be held December 3 and will mark the start of the annual open enrollment period.  
 
FAIR BOARD  
President Katie Salsbury reviewed her year-end recap (Attachment #16). She said the fairgrounds were heavily 
used this summer and the fair was a great success, with increased attendance, awareness and participation 
(Attachment #16). The Fair Board is wholeheartedly committed to developing the fairgrounds into a year-round 
facility to be used to help preserve and promote the county’s western heritage and rural traditions.  
 
However, increased usage and improved maintenance have resulted in a significant change to the fairgrounds 
budget, causing the Fair Board to realize that their current business model probably will not produce enough 
funds to hire a part time Fairgrounds Administrator as approved for FY 2016.  Nonetheless this position is 
necessary. Therefore, the Fair Board is proposing to allow camping and horse boarding at the campground the 
summer of 2016 in order to raise sufficient funds for a staff person. Ms. Salsbury said there is a big need for 
horse boarding, which is not offered by any private facility, and that camping is already included in the 
fairgrounds master plan.  
 
 MOTION. 

 

Commissioner Riegel made a motion to approve the advertising and hiring of a 19-hour per week  
Fairgrounds Administrator at pay grade 6. Motion seconded by Commissioner Park and carried unanimously. 
(Attachment #17)  

Ms. Salsbury reviewed the current status of their FY 2015 budgets and received approval to purchase a dust 
control product for winter use at the arena and additional signs for the fairgrounds. Her proposed changes to the 
FY 2016 budget will be discussed after the close-out of the current year.  
 
MAINTENANCE. The Board reviewed the Building Official’s memo regarding maintenance needs at the 
fairgrounds (Attachment #18). Ms. Salsbury said the wood burning stove is still being used and should be kept if 
possible. The Board asked County Executive Assistant Holly Wolgamott to follow up with Mr. Davis.  



Page 7 of 8                                                                                         Minutes of Board of Teton County Commissioners:  September 14, 2015 

 
 MOTION.

 

 At 5:33 pm Chairman Leake made a motion to recess until 9 am on Wednesday, September 16 at 
which time the new parcel-based solid waste user fee and necessary outreach efforts will be discussed. Motion 
seconded by Commissioner Riegel and carried unanimously. 

 
            MINUTES: September  16, 2015 continuation  
 
Chairman Leake called the recessed meeting back to order at 9:02 am.  
 
COMMISSIONERS PRESENT:  Bill Leake, Cindy Riegel, Kelly Park  
 
OTHER ELECTED OFFICIALS PRESENT:  Clerk Mary Lou Hansen, Assessor Bonnie Beard   
 
PARCELS 
Chairman Leake said the Board needs a better understanding of how parcels are defined and tracked in relation 
to the county’s new $60 per parcel Solid Waste User Fee (SWUF). Planning Administrator Jason Boal said that 
earlier in the meeting he had begun explaining the difference between a “parcel” as tracked by the Assessor and 
a “buildable parcel” as tracked by the Planning Department. However, it became apparent during that discussion 
that the Assessor’s expertise was needed for further clarification.  
 
Assessor Beard said parcels are defined by a legal description as it appears within a recorded deed. If a single 
deed includes multiple legal descriptions, she tracks a separate parcel for each legal description. If the owner of 
multiple adjacent parcels wants to combine those parcels into a single parcel, the owner must obtain and record 
a new survey/legal description. (State statute was changed recently to eliminate a previous long-standing 
requirement that property within different Sections must be tracked via two different parcels, even if the 
properties were adjacent.)  
 
Assessor Beard stressed that tax numbers/legal descriptions are not the same thing as parcel numbers, which are 
the RP numbers that appear on valuation and tax notices. This can become quite confusing since a single parcel 
may have more than one tax number and a single tax number may refer to more than one parcel. The group 
agreed that it was critical for everyone to use the correct terminology when discussing these matters with 
constituents. 
 
When a property owner wants to initiate a development proposal or obtain a building permit, Mr. Boal said his 
staff bases decisions on information found in the recorded deeds and does not refer to parcel numbers. He said 
the history of lot splits, boundary adjustments and other factors determine whether a specific lot is “buildable” 
and what type of development or subdivision may be allowed on a particular piece of property. If the owner of 
multiple adjacent lots within a platted subdivision wants to combine those lots into a single lot, they must follow 
a formal plat amendment process which currently requires a $1,700 fee and three public hearings. No survey is 
needed.  
 
The planning department is also involved if a property owner wants to combine parcels not within a subdivision 
by drawing new internal boundaries. The property owner must use the Boundary Adjustment process, which 
costs $406 for the application and survey review. They must also obtain a new survey and legal description.   
 
The planning department is not involved f the owner of multiple adjacent parcels not in a subdivision wants to 
combine those lots into a single parcel. This circumstance requires the property owner to obtain and record a 
new survey/legal description, which the Assessor can then use to update her records with no additional fee.  
 
The $60 per parcel SWUF is replacing the previous structure-based SWUF, which has been assessed on about 
6,000 parcels for many years. The owners of those parcels will notice a significant decrease in their SWUF fee 
on the November tax notices. However, the owners of the other 9,000 parcels in the county will notice a SWUF 
on their tax bills for the first time ever.  



Page 8 of 8                                                                                         Minutes of Board of Teton County Commissioners:  September 14, 2015 

 
The Board discussed how best to educate taxpayers regarding: (1) Changes to the Solid Waste User Fee; and (2) 
Options for owners of multiple parcels wishing to reduce the number of such fees paid. They agreed that Ms. 
Wolgamott should create a flyer or brochure to be inserted into the envelopes with the November tax notices. 
Ms. Wolgamott also agreed to write a press release regarding the changes to the SWUF to be sent to the Teton 
Valley News.  
 
 MOTION.

 

 At 9:55 am Commissioner Park made a motion to adjourn. Motion seconded by Commissioner 
Riegel and carried unanimously. 

 
 
 
________________________________   ATTEST _____________________________ 
              Bill Leake, Chairman            Mary Lou Hansen, Clerk  
 
Attachments:  #1 Proposed amendment to County Zoning map and Victor Area of Impact map  
 #2 Insignificant Plat Amendment for Teton Valley Lodge Sites (Division 1)  
 #3 C. Riegel responses to four questions regarding Land Use Code update process  
 #4 Weed Supervisor/Natural Resource Specialist job description  
 #5 Public Works update  
 #6 Solid Waste update  
 #7 Clerk’s FY 2016 Budget Memo #7 
 #8 Certificate of 2015 Levies (for FY 2016)  
 #9 Search & Rescue request for disposal of county property  
 #10 PTO carry over requests  
 #11 Air traffic noise complaint  
 #12 Priorities List  
 #13 Legal Notice for Public Hearing regarding fee changes for FY 2016 
 #14 Resolution 2015-0914 adopting the county fee schedule for FY 2016 
 #15 Group health insurance renewal information from American Insurance  
 #16 Fair Board end-of-year Recap & Financial  
 #17 Fairgrounds Administrator job description  
 #18 Fairgrounds maintenance update memo  
 
 



Page 1 of 2                                            BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS HOUSING AUTHORITY WORK SESSION: September 16, 2015 

Teton County Commissioners Housing Authority Work Session 
Minutes: September 16, 2015  

Commissioners’ Meeting Room, 150 Courthouse Drive, Driggs, Idaho 
 

AGENDA 
1. Review Housing Study/Housing Needs Assessment 
2. Role of a Housing Authority 
3. Where to do we go from here 
4. Other Business 
5. Adjournment 
 
 

COMMISSIONERS PRESENT:  Kelly Park, Bill Leake, Cindy Riegel   
 
OTHER STAFF AND COMMUNITY REPRESENTATIVES PRESENT:   Holly Wolgamott; County  
Executive Assistant, Jason Boal; County Planning Administrator, Todd Woolstenhulme; Construction Manager 
Huntsman Springs, Debbie and Allen Allred;  Investors in Teton Valley housing, Brian McDermott; Teton Valley 
Business Development Center, Monte Woolstenhulme; Teton Valley Schools Superintendent, Glen Vitucci; former 
Teton Valley Housing Authority Commissioner, Robert Emerson; former Teton Valley Housing Authority employee, 
Ashley Koehler; City of Driggs Planning and Zoning Administrator, Shawn Hill; VARD Executive Director, Doug 
Self; City of Driggs Community Development Director, Jeff Potter; City of Victor City Councilman, Ken Dunn; 
Sage Realty, Alex Norton; Teton County Wyoming Joint-Long Range Planner.  
 
Chairman Leake called the meeting to order at 10:00 am.  
 
1. REVIEW OF HOUSING STUDY/HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT: Jason Boal began the meeting with a 

presentation detailing the history of the Housing Authority Commission (HAC) established by resolution by the 
Board of County Commissioners in 2007. Findings of housing studies and housing needs assessments used to 
justify the HAC’s original inception were presented. As a result of the housing market crash in 2008, the HAC 
lost its steam and its board members were not reappointed at the end of their terms. The HAC has not been an 
active commission since that time. Mr. Boal presented results from similar housing studies completed in 2014 
which indicated an obvious need to consider the re-establishment of the HAC. 

 
2. ROLE OF THE HOUSING AUTHORITY: The role of the HAC was discussed however it was concluded that 

the three cities, Victor, Driggs, and Tetonia, along with Teton County should meet to create a desired role and 
structure of the HAC. It was proposed that an employee that reports to the HAC would need to be hired to help 
carry out the goals and objectives of the commission. Funding needs were discussed for the HAC which include 
program/project funding and operational funding for a staff person, the former being less viable.   

 
Possible funding options for the HAC were discussed. Shawn Hill explained current options to include: Idaho 
Housing Finance, Housing and Urban Development (HUD), US Department of Agriculture (USDA), Habitat for 
Humanity, and Grand Targhee Ski Resort. Doug Self also commented that the three cities could amend their 
Resort Tax Ordinances to allow some of that money to be used for the HAC.  

 
Robert Emerson and Glen Vitucci reported that there are still funds available from donations used to establish the 
HAC in 2007 by the Cities of Driggs and Victor along with Teton County, Idaho. The county budgeted $5000 for 
the reestablishment of the HAC in FY 2016. Also, the Teton County Trust holds funds donated through the Tin 
Cup Challenge and by Alliance Title and Escrow Cooperation in the amount of $13,814 which could be used for 
current HAC needs.  

 
Commissioner Leake proposed that transportation issues be included as part of the Housing Authority’s mission 
as the two issues are so closely related. After some discussion, it was the consensus of the group to make 
transportation an integral part of addressing housing needs in the county.  

 

 

 



Page 2 of 2                                            BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS HOUSING AUTHORITY WORK SESSION: September 16, 2015 

3. WHERE WE GO FROM HERE: Shawn Hill felt that we should use this year to develop a long term housing 
plan. He emphasized the need to adopt the Housing Action Plan which included language on how to reinstate the 
HAC. He warned that taking a shotgun approach without a clear plan could completely miss the mark.  
Commissioner Park proposed bringing the HAC back, but proceeding with clearly defined steps as Mr. Hill 
described to ensure a successful commission within the next five years. Mr. Allred felt that we did not have five 
years, that this is going to happen with or without us, and that we need to act now by first establishing the HAC.  

 
Commissioner Riegel supported the need for the HAC but felt it should be a collaborative effort between the 
cities of Victor, Driggs, and Tetonia, Teton County, Idaho and Teton County, Wyoming. She felt that Teton 
County cities would take a larger role in the commission. Commissioner Leake questioned if the HAC should be 
established by the cities and not the county. Mr. Boal felt that the County could establish it but it would function 
as a separate entity from the county and could include representatives from the cities. Commissioner Leake 
suggested that Teton County Prosecutor, Kathy Spitzer, present all options in re-establishing the HAC to the 
Board of County Commissioners (BoCC) at their next meeting.   

 
Next Steps: 

 
Step 1: County Prosecutor, Kathy Spitzer will brief the BoCC on the process of re-establishing the HAC at the 
next BoCC meeting on September 25th, including the possibility of a joint County/City HAC 
Step 2: A meeting will be held with the City of Victor, City of Driggs, City of Tetonia, and Teton County, Idaho 
to establish the goals and criteria of the HAC.  
Step 3: The HAC will be officially re-established at a BoCC meeting in October of 2015.  
Step 4: The HAC will likely be tasked with hiring a consultant to create a job description for a HAC 
employeeand criteria for the position. The consultant could also create a work plan for the HAC board and staff 
and identify funding sources for operations and projects. 

 
4. OTHER BUSINESS: Commissioner Riegel stated that the Idaho Housing and Finance Association (IHFA) is 

hosting a Conference on Housing and Economic Development in Boise on October 6th – 7th. She suggested that 
someone representing Teton County, Idaho attend. Brian McDermott offered to attend if funding options were 
available to pay for his expenses. Commissioner Park indicated that he might be able to attend as well. 
Commissioner Riegel felt that travel expenses could be provided by the BoCC budget.   

 
 MOTION.  Commissioner Riegel made a motion to send a County representative to the Conference on 
Housing and Economic Development in Boise, ID on October 6th – 7th, 2015 to be funded out of the Board of 
County Commissioners’ contingency account, not to exceed $750. Motion seconded by Commissioner Park and 
carried unanimously.  

 
 MOTION AMMENDMENT.   Commissioner Leake moved to amend the previous motion to send a County 
representative to the Conference on Housing and Economic Development in Boise, ID on October 6th – 7th, 2015 
to be funded out of the Board of County Commissioners’ Travel and Training Expense account, not to exceed 
$750. Motion seconded by Commissioner Park and carried unanimously. 
 

5. ADJOURNMENT  
 MOTION.  At 12:16 pm Chairman Leake made a motion to adjourn the meeting.  Motion seconded by 
Commissioner Park and carried. 

 
 
 
 ______________________________________           ATTEST: __________________________________ 
                                Bill Leake, Chairman           Mary Lou Hansen, Clerk  
  
Attachments:  None.  
 



 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
To:   Board of County Commissioners 
From:  Kathy Spitzer 
Re:   Housing Authority  
Date:  September 25, 2015 
 
The Housing Authority that was created in 2007.  It has not functioned for the past few 
years but I believe there is money in its fund.  Because the Housing Authority is not an 
agency of the County, but an independent body, the County has not authority over their 
funds unless the authority of the Commission is terminated.  Because the Authority 
determined years ago that there was no longer a need for the Housing Authority, it was 
essentially terminated without the proper resolution bythe Board of County 
Commissioners.  The Code does not mention a “dormant” commission, it either has 
active Commissioners, or it is terminated by the County because it is no longer necessary 
§ 31-4206 states that any funds received by the County after termination  “shall be 
dedicated to the extension, maintenance and promotion of the public parks system of 
said county for the benefit and welfare of the county.”  The money that is currently in the 
housing fund could be used for parks, the ice rink, bike paths, etc.   If the County later 
determined to set up a Housing Authority, § 31-4209 allows the County to donate money.   
 
My recommendation is that you meet with the Cities and available previous Housing 
Authority Commissioners to discuss the need for a Housing Authority, the best method 
for creating a stable Housing Authority, the qualifications of its members, its funding 
capabilities, etc.  The Code allows for Counties and Cities to create a Housing Authority, 
or to do so jointly with the Cities.  
 

§ 31-4205.  Creation of Housing Authorities 

Nothing in this act shall prevent governing bodies from jointly creating by 
resolution an independent public body corporate and politic to carry out 
and effectuate the purposes and provisions of this act and to serve the best 
interests of their respective citizenry. 

Other than this one mention of joint creation there is nothing else in the Idaho Code that 
mentions whether the jointly created Commission would operate under Title 50, Chapter 
19 or Title 31, Chapter 42.  The two Chapters are very similar, but the entity to whom the 
Commission reports would be different.  If it were a joint appointment you would want 
to declare by resolution which code sections the Commission would operate under, Title 
50, Chapter 19 or Title 31, Chapter 42. 

Kathy Spitzer, Prosecuting Attorney 
Teton County Courthouse 

89 N. Street, Ste. 5,   Driggs, ID  83422 
(208) 354-2990 phone 

(208) 354-2994 fax 
kspitzer@co.teton.id.us 

mailto:kspitzer@co.teton.id.us


Hi Holly,  
 
Thanks for getting back to me. I got a little blurb from our Editor to let you know what we are up 
to. Let me know if you need anything else. 
 
Sage 
 
 
Teton Valley Magazine, originally known as Teton Valley Top to Bottom (the name was changed in 
2007), has been “Celebrating Life on the West Slope of the Tetons” since 1997. The magazine is 
published by Driggs-based Powder Mountain Press (PMP)—their office is located on the third floor 
of the Coulter Building—and it is written, photographed, and produced by locals. Among the 
magazine’s many regular contributors is Teton County GIS coordinator Rob Marin. During the nearly 
20 years of publication, dozens of history pieces have been featured in the magazine, ranging from 
stories about the mountain men and the history of the railroad to early day midwives and the coal-
mining settlement of Sam. In celebration of the centennial of Teton County, PMP weekly is posting 
two of these previously published stories with photos on its 
website, www.tetonvalleymagazine.com. They will continue doing this through January 26, 2016, 
which is one year to the day since the kickoff of the centennial in 2015. (The act creating the county 
was signed in Boise on January 26, 1915.) PMP has asked if the County would be willing to add a 
button to its home page linking visitors to these history stories at the Teton Valley 
Magazine website. They wish to get the word out in as many ways as possible so that a greater 
number of residents and visitors can enjoy these stories and become better acquainted with the 
valley’s rich history. 

On Sep 17, 2015, at 10:27 AM, Holly Wolgamott <hwolgamott@co.teton.id.us> wrote: 
 
Good morning Sage, 
I’m sorry for the delayed response but I wanted to ask the county commissioners about this before 
acting on it. They seem to be in favor of having a link on our website but want to bring it up for official 
approval at their next meeting on September 25th. I will put it on our agenda for that purpose. In the 
meantime, can you please provide a little more detail on the project? I’m sure they will ask me at the 
meeting, so a brief summary of what is planned would be great! 
  
Thanks very much, 
  
Holly S. Wolgamott, CMC 
County Executive Assistant/Risk Manager                                                                                                
150 Courthouse Drive, Driggs, ID 83422 
1-208-354-8775 
www.tetoncountyidaho.gov 
  
<image001.png> 
  
From: Sage Hibberd [mailto:sage@powdermountainpress.com]  
Sent: Monday, September 14, 2015 11:57 AM 
To: Holly Wolgamott 
Subject: TVM History Stories Button 

http://www.tetonvalleymagazine.com/
mailto:hwolgamott@co.teton.id.us
http://www.tetoncountyidaho.gov/
mailto:sage@powdermountainpress.com


  
Hi Holly,  
  
I got your email address from Mac McCoy my editor. I am the Designer for Teton Valley 
Magazine, and he asked for a button to go on your website. I wasn’t sure of the size, so I can 
change it if needed, but here it is. 
  
tx 
  
sage 
  
  
  
Sage Hibberd 
Art Director 
 
. . . . . . . . . . . . .  
 
 
Teton Valley Magazine 
Powder Mountain Press Art Department 
PO Box 1167, 18 N Main #305, Driggs, ID 83422 
PH 208.354.3466 FX 208.354.3468 

 



 
 
 

Telephone No. 208-354-8780                                                                            150 Courthouse Dr #208  
FAX No. 208-354-8410              Teton County Clerk                 Driggs, Id. 83422 
 
 
 
 
September 16, 2015 
 
To:           Commissioners 

From:      Chief Deputy Clerk 
Subject:  2016 Retail Alcoholic Beverage Licenses 

 
I request that the following motion be made to grant pre-approval for the renewal of all 2015 
licenses if requested for 2016. Any new applications for beer/wine/liquor will be presented as 
they occur in order that the Board’s decision will be reflected in the minutes, 
 
Suggested Motion: I make a motion to approve 2016 Retail Alcoholic Beverage Licenses for the 
businesses listed in the attached Exhibit A, provided they submit the appropriate application and 
all required supporting documents. 



Exhibit A
License # Applicant Business Name
2015-26 A & C DAVIS INC EVERGREEN 66
2015-45 AGAVES LLC AGAVE
2015-29 BARRELS & BINS LLC BARRELS & BINS
2015-38 BIG HOLE BBQ LLC BIG HOLE BBQ
2015-9 BLACK HAWK ENTERPIRISES LLC LIQUOR MARKET
2015-44 BRIAM LLC KNOTTY PINE
2015-48 BRICKHOUSE 45 INC VICTOR EMPORIUM
2015-11 BROULIMS SUPER MARKETS LLC BROULIM'S SUPER MARKETS
2015-52 CITY OF DRIGGS INTERNATIONAL PEDIGREE STAGE STOP SLED DOG RACE
2015-28 COOK LIKE A CHEF INC THREE PEAKS DINNER TABLE
2015-4 DINING IN CATERING INC DINING IN CATERING
2015-51 DOWNTOWN DRIGGS COMMUMITY ASSOCIATION DRIGGS SNOWBALL
2015-68 DOWNTOWN DRIGGS COMMUNITY ASSOCIATION DRIGGS PLEIN AIR FESTIVAL
2015-67 DOWNTOWN DRIGGS COMMUNITY ASSOCIATION TETON VALLEY INDEPENDENCE DAY CELEBRATION
2015-25 EVEREST MOMO SHACK II LLC EVEREST MOMO SHACK II LLC
2015-70 FRIENDS OF THE TETON RIVER 15 TH ANNUAL RIVER PARTY
2015-66 FRIENDS OF THE TETON RIVER FISHERMAN'S DINNER
2015-72 FRIENDS OF THE TETON RIVER INC WILD & SCENIC FILM FESTIVAL
2015-47 FUEGO GRILL LLC FUEGO GRILL
2015-6 GEE INTER FOODS INC BANGKOK KITCHEN
2015-13 GTBC LLC GRAND TETON BREWING CO
2015-21 H RAY HEILESON KWIK WAY
2015-57 HEADWATERS GRILLE HEAD WATERS GRILLE LLC
2015-10 HUNTSMAN SPRINGS INC HUNTSMAN SPRINGS
2015-32 LESLI KLEBESADEL TETON SPRITS
2015-36 MIRIAM MAYEN HACIENDA CUAJIMALPA
2015-14 MOVINO LLC MOVINO LLC
2015-1 ODH CORP GRUMPY'S GOAT SHACK
2015-34 OFF PISTE LLC VICTOR VALLEY MARKET
2015-49 O'ROUKE'S INC O'ROURKE'S SPORTS BAR AND GRILL
2015-7 PATRICK MARKERT ROYAL WOLF LLC
2015-27 PENDL'S BAKERY & CAFE INC PENDL'S BAKERY & CAFE
2015-23 PROVISIONS RESTAURANT LLC PROVISIONS RESTAURANT LLC
2015-46 SCRATCH LLC SCRATCH
2015-55 SEGO SKI CO SEGO LLC
2015-56 SENIOR CITIZENS OF TETON COUNTY INC AN AFFAIR TO REMEMBER
2015-30 SEOUL RESTAURANT LLC SEOUL RESTAURANT
2015-50 SPOONS BISTRO LLC SPOONS BISTRO LLC
2015-53 SPUD SISTER LLC BRAKEMAN AMERICAN GRILL
2015-69 TETON COUNTY FAIR BOARD TETON COUNTY FAIR BOARD DINNER
2015-20 TETON SPRINGS LODGE LLC TETON SPRINGS LODGE & SPA
2015-22 TETON THAI INC TETON THAI
2015-65 TETON VALLEY FOUNDATION MUSIC ON MAIN
2015-64 TETON VALLEY FOUNDATION MUSIC ON MAIN
2015-63 TETON VALLEY FOUNDATION MUSIC ON MAIN
2015-62 TETON VALLEY FOUNDATION MUSIC ON MAIN
2015-61 TETON VALLEY FOUNDATION MUSIC ON MAIN
2015-60 TETON VALLEY FOUNDATION MUSIC ON MAIN
2015-59 TETON VALLEY FOUNDATION MUSIC ON MAIN
2015-58 TETON VALLEY FOUNDATION MUSIC ON MAIN
2015-71 TETON VALLEY FOUNDATION INC BRIDGES TO CHANGE MOVIE PREMIERE
2015-43 TETON VALLEY FOUNDATION INC FRIDAY NIGHT ICE LIVE
2015-42 TETON VALLEY FOUNDATION INC MOOSE HOCKEY EXHIBITION
2015-41 TETON VALLEY FOUNDATION INC TETON VALLEY GREAT SNOWFEST
2015-40 TETON VALLEY FOUNDATION INC FRIDAY NIGHT ICE LIVE
2015-54 TETONIC WINES LLC TETONIC WINES LLC
2015-12 THE BUNKHOUSE LLC BIG HOLE BAGELS & BREAKFAST
2015-5 TONY'S PIZZA & PASTA INC TONY'S PIZZA & PASTA INC
2015-35 WARBIRD CAFE LLC WARBIRD CAFE
2015-19 WAYNE D HARTSHORN BASIN TRAVEL STOP
2015-18 WAYNE D HARTSHORN BASIN TRAVEL STOP #2
2015-37 WEST SIDE YARD INC WEST SIDE YARD
2015-8 WHITMORE'S LLC DAVE'S PUBB
2015-33 WILDLIFE BREWING LLC WILDLIFE BREWING LLC
2015-24 WORLD CAST ANGLERS WORLD CAST ANGLERS



O
rg

an
iz

at
io

n

Request 
Received 

Am
ou

nt
 

Re
ce

iv
ed

   
   

   
   

 
FY

 2
01

5

Am
ou

nt
 

Re
qu

es
te

d 
   

   
   

   
 

FY
 2

01
6

Pr
el

im
in

ar
y 

Am
ou

nt
 

Ap
pr

ov
ed

Fi
na

l A
m

ou
nt

 
Ap

pr
ov

ed
 

BO
CC

 
si

gn
ed

 
co

nt
ra

ct
 

N
on

-P
ro

fit
 

Si
gn

ed
 

Co
nt

ra
ct

Ve
te

ra
ns

 M
em

or
ia

l (
Am

er
ic

an
 L

eg
io

n)
 

x
6,

84
6

7,
05

1
7,

05
1

7,
05

1
n/

a
n/

a

Fa
m

ily
 S

af
et

y 
N

et
w

or
k

x
5,

00
0

5,
00

0
5,

00
0

5,
00

0

G
eo

to
ur

ism
 C

en
te

r 
x

0
20

00
0

0
0

Se
ni

or
s W

es
t o

f t
he

 T
et

on
s

x
6,

10
0

6,
00

0
6,

00
0

6,
00

0

M
en

ta
l H

ea
lth

 (T
et

on
 V

al
le

y 
M

en
ta

l H
ea

lth
 C

oa
lit

io
n)

x
5,

00
0

5,
00

0
5,

00
0

5,
00

0

Ta
rg

he
e 

Re
gi

on
al

 P
ub

lic
 T

ra
ns

it 
Au

th
or

ity
 (T

RP
TA

)
x

6,
00

0*
5,

00
0

6,
00

0
6,

00
0

$5
,0

00
 to

 T
RP

TA
, $

1,
00

0 
fo

r J
oh

n 
Tr

ud
el

l t
o 

at
te

nd
 

TR
PT

A 
m

ee
tin

gs
 

Te
to

n 
Va

lle
y 

Bu
sin

es
s D

ev
el

op
m

en
t C

en
te

r 
x

15
,0

00
25

,0
00

25
,0

00
25

,0
00

Te
to

n 
Va

lle
y 

Co
m

m
un

ity
 A

ni
m

al
 S

he
lte

r
x

9,
60

0
9,

60
0

9,
60

0
9,

60
0

m
ov

ed
 in

to
 S

he
rif

f's
 b

ud
ge

t (
01

-0
4-

55
2)

 

Te
to

n 
Va

lle
y 

Co
m

m
un

ity
 R

ec
yc

lin
g

x
5,

50
0

8,
00

0
5,

00
0

5,
00

0
m

ov
ed

 in
to

 S
ol

id
 W

as
te

 b
ud

ge
t (

23
-0

0-
68

7)
 

Te
to

n 
Va

lle
y 

Fo
od

 P
an

tr
y 

(F
oo

d 
Ba

nk
)

x
6,

50
0

6,
50

0
6,

50
0

6,
50

0

Te
to

n 
Va

lle
y 

Fo
un

da
tio

n 
- I

ce
 R

in
k

x
0

60
,0

00
0

0

Te
to

n 
Va

lle
y 

Fo
un

da
tio

n 
- S

no
w

Fe
st

x
2,

92
6

no
 re

qu
es

t?
3,

00
0

3,
00

0
Pl

ac
eh

ol
de

r i
n 

Co
nt

in
ge

nc
y 

(0
1-

18
-5

26
) 

To
ur

ism
 

 
 

 
10

,0
00

10
,0

00
Pl

ac
eh

ol
de

r i
n 

Co
nt

in
ge

nc
y 

(0
1-

18
-5

26
) 

TO
TA

LS
$6

2,
47

2
$1

57
,1

51
$7

8,
15

1

N
on

-P
ro

fit
 F

un
di

ng
 R

eq
ue

st
s:

 F
Y 

20
16













































RESOLUTION 2015-0925A
QUARTERLY BUDGET TRANSFERS: Q4 FY 2015

WHEREAS, on August 25, 2014 the Board of County Commissioners adopted the Teton County 
Budget for Fiscal Year 2015; and

WHEREAS, since that date the specific needs and expenses within several Funds have changed; 
and 

WHEREAS, since that date unantncipated revenues may have become available; and 

WHEREAS, since that date monies budgeted to be spent during the previous fiscal year were not 
spent, resulting in unanticipated cash carryover into the current fiscal year; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Idaho Code 31 Chapter 16, the Teton County Auditor may not issue, and 
the Teton County Board of Commissioners may not approve, any claim for any expenditure in 
excess of a budget appropriation; and 

WHEREAS, specific accounts within several Funds do not have sufficient amounts appropriated, 
while other specific accounts within those Funds have excess amounts appropriated.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT UNANIMOUSLY RESOLVED that the Board of Teton County 
Commissioners do hereby approve the following transfers of budget appropriations as itemized in 
Exhibit A. 

APPROVED by the Board of Teton County Commissioners on September 25, 2015.

Chairman: ________________________________________
                                            Bill Leake, Chairman 

ATTEST: ________________________________________
                                           Mary Lou Hansen, Clerk



Reason Amount Out of This 
Account  Description Into This 

Account Description Date 
Discussed 

Use unspent budget for E5000S 13,280.00 33-00-520 Gravel Stabilization 33-00-523 Reconstruction 9/25/2015

Use unspent budget for E5000S 26,305.00 33-00-521 Chip Seal 33-00-523 Reconstruction 9/25/2015

Use contingency for E5000S 10,000.00 33-00-526 Contingency 33-00-523 Reconstruction 9/25/2015

Use unspent budget for E5000S 8,500.00 33-00-810 Engineering 33-00-523 Reconstruction 9/25/2015

Use unspent budget for E5000S 30,880.00 02-00-646 Plant asphalt for patching 2-00-523 Reconstruction 9/25/2015

Use unspent budget for E5000S 6,800.00 2-00-689 Contract: Aggregate 2-00-523 Reconstruction 9/25/2015

Use contingency for E5000S 11,500.00 2-00-526 Contingency 2-00-523 Reconstruction 9/25/2015

Use unspent budget for E5000S 15,590.00 2-00-402-5 Seasonal truck drivers 2-00-523 Reconstruction 9/25/2015

Use LHTAC grant for Fox Creek road reconstruction 83,600.00 n/a Grant 86-2-523 Reconstruction 2014 budget

Use remaining cash for repair of Ambulance #4 10,000.00 n/a Remaining Cash 50-00-475 Ambulance Maint & Repair 8/10/2015

Use Fund 33 remaining cash for E5000S asphalt 33,500.00 n/a Remaining Cash 33-00-523 Reconstruction 8/10/2015

Use unanticipated Figure 8 revenue for Figure 8 expenses 2,500.00 n/a Increased revenues 82-00-443 Figure 8 Expenses 9/14/2015

Use unanticipated Horse Pull revenue for Horse Pull expenses 2,000.00 n/a Increased Revenues 82-00-510-01 Horse Pull Expenses 9/14/2015

Use unanticipated rental revenues for maintenance & repair expense  2,500.00 n/a Increased revenues 82-00-489 Repairs/Maint: Buildings 9/14/2015

Use unanticipated rental revenues for maintenance & repair expense  4,300.00 n/a Increased revenues 82-00-670 Contracts-Groundskeeper 9/14/2015

Use unanticipated rental revenues for maintenance & repair expense  2,000.00 n/a Remaining Cash 82-00-465 Elec, Prop, Trash, Loos, Gas 9/25/2015

Use security deposits for security deposit refunds 4,000.00 n/a Security Deposits 82-00-498 Refund Deposit 9/25/2015

Use Fund 2 remaining cash for E5000S 64,600.00 n/a Remaining Cash 2-00-523 Reconstruction 9/25/2015

Use General Fund Remaining Cash for E5000S asphalt 232,220.00 n/a Remaining Cash-General Fund 02-00-523 Reconstruction 8/10/2015

EXHIBIT A - Resolution 2015-0925 Quar ter ly Budget Transfers Q4 FY 2015

Changes that increase a Total Fund Budget without increasing taxes & DO NOT require a Journal Entry to move cash balances. These amounts will be added to the end-of-year Budget Resolution. 

Changes that increase a Total Fund Budget without increasing taxes & DO require a Journal Entry to move cash balances. These amounts will be added to the end-of-year Budget Resolution. 



Last Name First Name College or THS Date Approved

Prince Hannah CSI

Moulton Sean CSI

Bocardo Andy CSI

Birch Derek CSI

Bates Thomas CSI

Pence Thomas CSI

Ortiz Amy CSI

Chapman Dakota CSI

Joseph James CSI

Kincaid Shelby CSI

Jacobs Austin CSI

Padilla Luis CSI

Castillo Jose CSI

Warburton Taylor CSI

Certificates of Residency: 2015-2016



BoCC Priorities – updated 9/21/15 added items 21, revised 4, 8, 20 

1)  Land Fill Cap rebuild & 5000South   
2) Centennial Sentry Eagle – install on Court House Lawn – Leake to contact MD for design 

and cost estimate for 100 to 300sqft with benches & plaque 
3) Finalize Non-Profit Funding Support Policy 
4) Staffing additions/funding for:  

a. Animal Control,  
b. Facility Mgmt/PW Support & LEC Part Time Custodian (Posted),  
c. IT moved to Greg Adams (Done),  
d. Economic Development increased support from $15K/yr to $25K/yr plus $10K for 

Tourism (Done),  
e. Weed Control/Natural Resource Specialist (Posted), and  
f. Recreation (Continue to define position) 

5) Address Affordable Housing, Public Transit, and Regional Planning 
6) P&Z Code Development and Adoption Process 
7) Housing Authority Pathforward – Sept 16th mtg 
8) Solid Waste Disposal and Recycling Hauler Contract – Awarded, lesson learned 1) figure 

out how to get word out about major decisions before the BoCC and use of Press 
Releases to announce and explain basis of major decisions affecting residents 

9) Solid Waste Fee structure changed to per parcel assessment per Idaho Statutes – issue 
paper explaining why and post on county website 

10) Frontage Road Dust Abatement 
11) Extent of support for Farm-to-Market roads 
12) Future Gravel Pit needs 
13) Teton Scenic Parkway resolution – meet with key entities to discuss pros and cons 
14) Resolve Smith Canyon Access road infringement 
15) Future R&B Facility Needs – Driggs is interested in getting this done within the 

next 5 years 
16) FY16 Road Priorities and reevaluate current roads being maintained by the county 
17) Update Capital Improvement Plan and Impact Fees – need to get board members 
18) Finalize <5 acre ag exemption procedure 
19) Cost of growth and how to calculate it.  Basis for economic prosperity through 

expanding the Tax Base.  What is Teton Valley’s optimum population relative to quality 
of life and sustainability 

20) How to improve communications on what is going on in County Govt. – consider 
publishing this priority list and include putting a notice in the Tax Notice mailing of 
public forum meeting dates/time 

21) Support Education Excellence 



Fund Salaries Benefits Other Total
02 Road & Bridge 339,900 339,900

33  Road Levy 300,300 431,783

50 Ambulance 10,000 10,000

82  Fair  20,000 30,000

86  Grants 11,000 2,050 83,600 96,650

93 Circulation Impact Fees 64,000 64,000

            TOTAL $11,000 $2,050 $817,800 $972,333

WHEREAS, the budgets for several Funds need to be updated to accurately reflect 
unanticipated revenue and related expensees, plus other expenditures funded with 
Remaining Cash, unanticipated revenues and grants; and 

RESOLUTION 2015-0925B
OPENING FY 2015 BUDGETS FOR SEVERAL FUNDS 

APPROVED by the Board of Teton County Commissioners on September 25, 2015.

Capital

$131,483

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Teton County Commissioners 
do hereby unanimously adopt the revised budget totals as itemized below: 

10,000

$141,483

Chairman: ________________________________________
                                            Bill Leake, Chairman 

ATTEST: ________________________________________
                                         Mary Lou Hansen, Clerk 

WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners published a legal notice and held a 
public hearing on September 25, 2015 in accordance with Idaho Code 31-1605; and 



Reason Amount Resolution

Use Brookside Hollow payment for Halloween OT for Deputies 400.00 2014-1222

Use Bulletproof Vest Partnership grant for vests 851.22 2015-0413

Received larger grant than expected from the U of Idaho 2,523.00 2015-0413

Use Remaining Cash for digitization project 5,000.00 2015-0713

Use Remaining Cash for Centennial lightpost flags 2,722.00 2014-1222

Use Remaining Cash for prisoner medical expenses 30,000.00 2015-0713

$41,496.22 Total increase to 01 General Fund budget Will spend less than original budget; No budget opening required 

Use Remaining Cash to fund Bridge Scour Countermeasures 29,900.00 2014-1222

Use Remaining Cash to buy Signs for LHTAC Grant Project 10,000.00 2014-1222

Use Fund 2 remaining cash for E5000S 64,600.00 2015-0925

Use General Fund Remaining Cash for E5000S asphalt 232,220.00 2015-0925

$336,720.00 Total increase to 02 Road & Bridge budget May spend more than original budget; BUDGET OPENING REQUIRED 

Use Remaining Cash for E5000S asphalt 33,500.00 2015-0925

Use Remaining Cash for gravel crushing 12,000.00 2014-1222

Use Remaining Cash for E5000S reconstruction 237,000.00 2015-0713

Use Remaining Cash for Edgewood Estates public access 5,000.00 2014-1222

Use Remaining Cash for E5000S project 12,800.00 2015-0413

Use Remaining Cash for Darby Creek Bridge 119,158.00 2014-1222

Use Remaining Cash for Darby Creek Bridge CO #1 12,325.00 2014-1222

$431,783.00 Total increase to 33 Special Road Levy budget Will spend more than original budget; BUDGET OPENING REQUIRED 

Use Remaining Cash for repair of Ambulance #4 10,000.00 2015-0925

$10,000.00 Total increase to 50 Ambulance budget Will spend more than original budget; BUDGET OPENING REQUIRED 

Use unanticipated Figure 8 revenue for Figure 8 expenses 2,500.00
Use unanticipated Horse Pull revenue for Horse Pull expenses 2,000.00
Use unanticipated rental revenues for maintenance & repair expenses 2,500.00
Use unanticipated rental revenues for maintenance & repair expenses 4,300.00
Use unanticipated rental revenues for maintenance & repair expenses 2,000.00
Use general fund dollars for repairs at Fair Grounds 2,166.00 2015-0713

Use Remaining Cash to purchase new tractor 10,000.00 2015-0413

Use security deposits for security deposit refunds 4,000.00
$29,466.00 Total increase to 82 Fair Board budget Will spend more than original budget; BUDGET OPENING REQUIRED 

Use STOP grant for new Victim Advocate position 11,000.00 2015-0413

Use STOP grant for new Victim Advocate position 1,200.00 2015-0413

Use STOP grant for new Victim Advocate position 850.00 2015-0413

Use LHTAC grant for Fox Creek road reconstruction 83,600.00 2015-0925

$96,650.00 Total increase to 86 Grants budget Will spend more than original budget; BUDGET OPENING REQUIRED 

Use unanticipated impact fees for E5000S project 64,000.00 2015-0713

$64,000.00 Total increase to 93 Circulation Impact Fee budget Will spend more than original budget; BUDGET OPENING REQUIRED 

SUMMARY of Quar ter ly Changes for  FY 2015 Budget Opening 



Fund Salaries Benefits Other Total
02 Road & Bridge 339,900 339,900
33  Road Levy 300,300 431,783
50 Ambulance 10,000 10,000
82  Fair  20,000 30,000
86  Grants 11,000 2,050 83,600 96,650
93 Circulation Impact Fees 64,000 64,000
            TOTAL $11,000 $2,050 $817,800 $972,333

02 Use FY14 carryover for E5000S, signs & bridge repair
33 Use FY14 carryover for E5000S, gravel crushing & Darby Bridge construction 
50 Use FY14 carryover to repair Ambulance #4

86 Use grants for Bilingual DV Investigator & E5000S project   

10,000

$141,483

Published in Teton Valley News 
September 17 & 24, 2015. 93 Use  unanticipated revenue for E5000S project 

 Teton County 2015 Budget Opening
Public notice is hereby given that the Teton County Commission will meet 
September 25 at 11:30 am in the Commissioners Meeting Room at 150 
Courthouse Drive, Driggs, Idaho for the purpose of opening the current 
fiscal year budget at which time any taxpayer may appear and be heard 
upon any part of said budget changes. 

Capital

$131,483

82 Use FY14 carryover & unanticipated revenue for events, new tractor & fairgrounds maint.


	BOCCMinutes 09-14-2015.pdf
	Board of Teton County Commissioners
	Commissioners’ Meeting Room, 150 Courthouse Drive, Driggs, Idaho


	Non-profit contracts.pdf
	Non-profit requests & approved amounts.final.pdf
	FY 2016


	Resolution 2015-0925A qtrly budget transfers.pdf
	4th qtr
	Resolution 2015-0925A -Exhibit A.pdf
	4th Qtr


	Resolution 2015-0925B Opening FY 2015 budget.pdf
	open 2015 budget 
	Resolution 2015-0925B supporting info.pdf
	Totals for Budget opening

	Legal Notice.Budget Opening.2015final.pdf
	FY 2015


	Alcoholic Beverage Licenses.pdf
	Alcoholic Beverage licenses - exhibit A.pdf
	Sheet1



